ARTICLE I NAME

This Board is a creation of *Official Code of Georgia Annotated (O.C.G.A.)* §31-3-1, which establishes a county board of health in each and every county of the State. Consequently, this board is named the Lowndes County Board of Health.

ARTICLE II FUNCTIONS AND POWERS

The powers and functions of the Lowndes County Board of Health are those given it by Sections 31-3-4 and 31-3-5 of Chapter 31-3.

ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP

The Lowndes County Board of Health shall be composed of seven (7) members as provided in Section 31-3-2 of Chapter 31-3. Composition of the Board, appointments, terms of members, notification of vacancies, appointment and qualification of members to fill vacancies shall all be according to said Section 31-3-2 and these Bylaws.

ARTICLE IV OFFICERS

SECTION I – TITLES OF OFFICERS

The officers of the Lowndes County Board of Health shall be the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman, and the Secretary.

SECTION II – ELECTION OF OFFICERS

Officers shall be elected at the first regular meeting of the Board of alternate calendar years and hold office for two years or until a successor is elected. Officers shall be elected every two years and at the first regular meeting of the Board of the calendar year and hold office for two years or until a successor is elected.

SECTION III – DUTIES OF OFFICERS

The Chairman shall call and preside at all meetings and shall be a member ex-officio of any or all committees which might be appointed. The Vice-Chairman in the absence of the Chairman, shall assume all his duties and have all his authority. The Secretary shall keep accurate and complete minutes of all meetings, call meetings on order of the Chairman, attend to all correspondence, and perform such other duties as ordinarily pertain to his office.

ARTICLE V

SECTION I – CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The District Health Director of Public Health District 8-1 shall serve as the Chief Executive Officer of this Board of Health as provided in Sections 31-3-12 and 31-3-15 of the Official Code of Georgia.

SECTION II - FUNCTIONS AND POWER

The District Health Director, as Chief Executive Officer of this Board of Health, shall in the name of said Board of Health perform the functions and exercise the powers set forth in O.C.G.A. Chapter 31-3, except the power to adopt By-Laws and adopt rules.

ARTICLE VI MEETINGS

SECTION I – REGULAR MEETINGS

Regular meetings shall be held on the fourth Tuesday of January, March, May, July, September, and November at 7:30 a.m. The Board may deviate from the customary hour with amendment to this section provided public notice is given at least twenty four (24) hours prior to the meeting. In order to comply with Georgia law, regular meetings shall be held no less frequently than quarterly.

SECTION II – SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the Chairman and shall be called at the request of an authorized representative of the Georgia Department of Human Resources or the Lowndes County Health Department or of any four members of the Lowndes County Board of Health.

At any special meeting, no business shall be transacted except that stated in the notice calling the meeting. Notice of any special meeting shall be made at least twenty-four (24) hours before the time set for the meeting; provided, however, that a meeting called to meet an emergency can be held as soon as a quorum of the members is assembled.

Special meetings may be called by the Chairman at the request of any member of the Board or as deemed necessary by the Chairman. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except that stated in the notice calling the meeting. Notice of any special meeting shall be given at least five days before the time set for the meeting; provided, however, that a meeting called to respond to a public health emergency may be held as soon as a quorum of member is assembled.

SECTION III – QUORUM

The Chairman or Vice-Chairman, and at least three other members of the Board, shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of business.

SECTION IV - AGENDA

The agenda at any regular meeting shall be:

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes
- 3. Unfinished Business
- 4. New Business
- 5. Announcements/Reports
- 6. Adjournment

The agenda shall be posted within two weeks of the meeting and no less than seven days before.

The agenda at a Special Meeting shall be:

- 1. Statement of the purpose for calling the meeting.
- 2. Discussion of the business for which the meeting was called.
- 3. Adjournment.

Notice of the meeting will be posted at least 24 hours before the meeting is held.

ARTICLE VII AMENDMENTS

The Bylaws may be amended after notice given at any regular meeting of the Board. Such notice shall be referred to a special committee which shall report at the next regular meeting and shall require a majority vote of those present for adoption. Amendments so made shall be effective when approved by the Board.

ARTICLE VIII ADOPTION

The Bylaws shall be adopted at any regular meeting of the Board and shall replace any previous Bylaws. They shall become effective when approved by the Board.

ADOPTED BY THE BEN HILL COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH, THIS 21st DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024.

TBD, Chairman Lowndes County Board of Health